
FOR PUBLIC FILE 
 
 

Supplementary Government Questionnaire 
The Republic of Indonesia 

 
 

Product:  A4 Copy Paper 
 

From:     The Republic of Indonesia 

 

Period of Investigation:  1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 
 

Response due by:   20 February 2017  
 

Investigation case manager:  Mr Tim King 
 
Phone:     +61 3 8539 2447 
Fax:      +61 3 8539 2499 
 
 
E-mail:  operations2@adcommission.gov.au  
 

Anti-Dumping Commission website: www.adcommission.gov.au  
 

 
RETURN OF QUESTIONNAIRE DETAILS 
 
Preferably by email to: operations2@adcommission.gov.au  
 

Or by mail  
(CD-ROM or USB):  Attention: Director Operations 2 
     Anti-Dumping Commission 

GPO Box 1632 
Melbourne VIC 3001 
Australia 

      
 
 

  

mailto:operations2@adcommission.gov.au
http://www.adcommission.gov.au/
mailto:operations2@adcommission.gov.au


FOR PUBLIC FILE 

2 

PUBLIC VERSION 

A4 Copy Paper from Indonesia – January 2017 

BACKGROUND AND GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 

 
1. Background 

On 12 April 2016 the Commissioner of the Anti-Dumping Commission (the Commissioner) 
initiated an investigation (the investigation) into the alleged dumping of A4 copy paper (the 
goods) exported to Australia from the Federative Republic of Brazil (Brazil), China, the 
Republic of Indonesia (Indonesia) and the Kingdom of Thailand (Thailand), and the alleged 
subsidisation of the goods exported from China and Indonesia, following an application made 
by Paper Australia Pty Ltd (the applicant). 

Further details in relation to the initiation of the investigation can be found in Anti-Dumping 
Notice (ADN) No. 2016/33 at www.adcommission.gov.au. 

For the purposes of the investigation the Commission is examining the existence and amount 
of any dumping and subsidisation in relation to A4 copy paper exported to Australia from 
Indonesia during the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (the investigation period). 

In relation to the investigation: 

• On 29 September 2016 the Commissioner gave public notice that he made a PAD under 
subsection 269TD(1) in respect of the alleged dumping of the goods exported to Australia 
from China and Thailand (PAD 341). Further information can be found in ADN 2016/100 
at www.adcommission.gov.au. 

• On 4 November 2016 the Commissioner gave public notice that he made a second PAD 
under subsection 269TD(1) in respect of the alleged dumping of the goods exported to 
Australia from Brazil and Indonesia (PAD 341A). Further information can be found in PAD 
Report No. 341A and ADN 2016/120 at www.adcommission.gov.au. 

• On 9 December 2016 the Commissioner published Statement of Essential Facts No. 341 
(SEF 341) on the public record. 

• On 16 December 2016 the Commissioner gave public notice that he made a third PAD 
under subsection 269TD(1) in respect of the alleged subsidisation of the goods exported 
to Australia from China (PAD 341B). The Commissioner also revised the level of dumping 
securities applicable to the goods exported from Brazil, China, Indonesia and Thailand. 
Further information can be found in ADN 2016/132 at www.adcommission.gov.au. 

2. Government questionnaire 

The Commission provided the Government of Indonesia (GOI) with a government 
questionnaire in April 2016. On 2 June 2016 the GOI provided its response to the government 
questionnaire (RGQ). The GOI’s RGQ was considered for the purposes of SEF 341. 

3. Purpose of this supplementary questionnaire 

The purpose of this supplementary questionnaire is to clarify certain aspects of the GOI’s 
original RGQ and obtain further information relevant to the investigation, particularly in 
relation to the preliminary finding that the situation in the Indonesian domestic market for like 
goods is such that selling prices in that market are not suitable for the purposes of 
establishing normal value. 

This questionnaire is divided into two sections, focusing on the GOI’s original RGQ and 
issues identified in subsequent submissions to the investigation. 

http://www.adcommission.gov.au/
http://www.adcommission.gov.au/
http://www.adcommission.gov.au/
http://www.adcommission.gov.au/
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The GOI does not have to complete this questionnaire. However, if the GOI does not 
respond, the Commission may be required to rely on information supplied by other parties. If 
the GOI chooses to respond to this questionnaire, the response is due by 13 February 2017. 

4. If you decide to respond 

Should the GOI choose to provide a response to this questionnaire, please note the following. 

For official use only and public record 

If the GOI chooses to respond to this questionnaire, you are required to lodge a “for official 
use only” and a “public record” version of your submission by the due date.  

In submitting these versions, please ensure that each page of the information you provide is 
clearly marked either “FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY” or “PUBLIC RECORD” in the header and 
footer.  

All information provided to the Commission “for official use only” will be treated confidentially.  
The public record version of your submission will be placed on the public record, which all 
interested parties can access.  

Your public record submission must contain sufficient detail to allow a reasonable 
understanding of the substance of the “for official use only” version. If, for some reason, you 
cannot produce a public record summary, contact the investigation case manager (see 
contact details on Page 1 of this questionnaire). 

Declaration 

You are required to make a declaration that the information contained in the GOI’s response 
is complete and correct. You must return the signed declaration of an authorised GOI official 
at last section of this questionnaire with the GOI’s response. 

Consultants/parties acting on your behalf 

If you intend to have another party acting on your behalf please advise the Commission of 
the relevant details. 

The Commission will require a written authorisation from the GOI for any party acting on its 
behalf.  

Provision of documents 

When providing documents, please indicate whether the documents:  

 are currently in force; 

 were in force during the investigation period; or 

 have been repealed, revised or superseded. 

Where the documents have been repealed, revised or superseded; 

 indicate when this revision occurred; 

 provide any notice of repeal; 

 provide the revised version;  

 provide the document that supersedes the requested document; and 

 indicate whether the revised version was in force during the investigation period. 
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Responses to questions should: 

 be as accurate and complete as possible, and attach all relevant supporting 
documents, even where not specifically requested in this questionnaire; 

 be in English (with fully translated versions of all requested and other applicable 
documents submitted); 

 list your source(s) of information for each question; 

 identify all units of measurement used in any tables, lists and calculations; 

 show any amounts in the currency in which they were originally denominated. 

Please note that answers such as: "Not Applicable" or an answer that only refers to an exhibit 
or an attachment may not be considered by the Commission to be adequate. We therefore 
suggest that in answering the questions you outline the key elements of your response in the 
primary submission document, rather than merely pointing to supporting documents of 
varying degrees of relevance and reliability as your answer. 

Lodgement 

Lodgement by email is preferred. The email address for lodgement is shown on the front 
cover of this questionnaire. If you lodge by email, you are still required to provide a “for official 
use only” and “public record” version of your submission by the due date.  

You may also lodge your response by mailing it to the address shown on the front cover of 
this questionnaire. For questions requiring a response in a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet that 
cannot be emailed, please provide those spread sheets on a CD-ROM or on a USB device. 

5. Verification  

The Commission wishes to conduct a visit to the GOI to verify the information provided. The 
Commission suggests that this visit could take place at the Indonesian Embassy in Canberra 
during the week of 13 February 2017, following receipt of the GOI’s response to this 
supplementary questionnaire. Please contact the Commission by email at 
operations2@adcommission.gov.au to confirm arrangements. 

mailto:operations2@adcommission.gov.au
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SECTION 1: QUESTIONS ON THE INDONESIAN FORESTRY INDUSTRY 

1. Timber species used within Indonesian pulp industry 

While noting that the GOI has previously indicated that only acacia timber is used in the 
production of pulp for copy paper within Indonesia, it is the Commission’s understanding, 
based on responses provided by cooperating exporters, that while acacia is the dominant 
species used, eucalyptus species are also used for pulp production within the Indonesian 
copy paper industry. 

 Please confirm whether Indonesia produces both acacia and eucalyptus timber for 
the purpose of producing pulp used in copy paper. 

Response: 

The Government of Indonesia (“GOI”) confirms that Indonesia produces both acacia 
and eucalyptus timbers. These two species are predominantly used by the pulp and 
paper industry. All acacia and eucalyptus timbers in Indonesia used in pulp and paper 
industry are grown in industrial forest (HTI).  

However, please note that acacia and eucalyptus timber produced in Indonesia is used 
predominantly in the production of wood chips and pulp, which is either used to make 
paper in Indonesia or is exported to countries such as China and Korea, as noted by 
the Commission in the Statement of Essential Facts.  Consequently, there is no excess 
production (i.e. over supply) of timber (acacia and eucalyptus) or of wood chip or of 
pulp production in Indonesia.  All production is either consumed locally or exported 
to meet overseas demand.  

Indonesia also would like to reiterate that no export ban is applied to wood chips and 
pulp of any species of tree, as we have mentioned in GOI’s response to Government 
Questionnaire and in submissions. 

 Please indicate whether acacia or eucalyptus timber grown in Indonesia is used in 
any other industries besides the pulp industry. 

Response: 

Acacia or eucalyptus timber is also used in other industries such as woodworking and 
furniture industry. However, unlike the pulp and paper industry, the woodworking and 
furniture industry requires bigger sizes of timber that are grown for at least 15 years.  

 Please indicate whether Indonesia imports any acacia or eucalyptus timber. If so, 
which countries is the timber imported from, and which industries is it used in? Please 
provide corresponding import volumes and values for individual countries. 

Response: 

Yes, Indonesia imports acacia and eucalyptus timber from Malaysia.  

However, since Indonesia import statistic for HS 4403 cannot be differentiated by 
species, the Commission should refer to the companies’ exporter questionnaire 
responses to obtain information on import volumes of acacia or eucalyptus timbers. 
Based on information from the companies PT. RAPP in 2015 imported [    ] m3 of timber 
and PT. TEL in 2015 imported [    ] m3 of timber.   
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2. Indonesia’s softwood market 

While noting that acacia and eucalyptus are both hardwoods, the GOI has claimed that the 
Commission has not undertaken adequate analysis of the Indonesian softwood market.  

 Please provide details of the volume and value of domestic softwood production, as 
well as any imports and exports of softwood timber. Please also provide details of 
whether exports are in log or woodchip form.  

Response: 

At the outset, the GOI notes that categorisation of timber into hardwood and softwood 
may be misleading.  This is because timber that may be thought to be hardwood, is in 
fact softwood and vice versa.  For example, balsa wood, which is one of the softest 
woods, is actually a hardwood.  The GOI it is preferable to focus on species of timber 
rather than on categorisation of timber into hardwood and softwood.  Nevertheless, 
the GOI has responded to the Commission’s below. 

Softwood trees usually grow in highlands (i.e. above 600 meter from sea level). In 
Indonesia there are some softwood trees like pine trees. However, pine trees in 
Indonesia are not used for wood production but rather only to get their sap. There is 
no industrial forests in Indonesia that grow softwood tree. Thus, GOI does not have 
any data on the volume or value of domestic softwood production.  The GOI considers 
that the cultivation of softwood timber in Indonesia is not relevant to this investigation 
as it is not primarily used in paper production. 

The pulp and paper industry, particularly for A4 copy paper, uses small amounts of 
softwood pulp with long fibre to add additional strength to the product.  The Indonesia 
pulp and paper industry imports 100% of their long fibre requirements in the form of 
pulp from trading companies in Singapore, Europe and North America.  

The GOI is unaware of any exports of softwood, either in the form of logs or 
woodchips, from Indonesia.  

 If applicable, please advise which countries are the main suppliers of softwood 
imports into Indonesia. Please provide volume and value data for individual countries 
during the investigation period.  

Response: 

Pulp and paper companies usually import softwood (long fibre) in the form of pulp 
from trading companies in Singapore, Europe and North America. The origin of such 
softwood pulp can be from Chile, Sweden, Germany, New Zealand. Since Indonesia 
import statistics are not differentiated between hardwood or softwood, the 
Commission should refer to the companies to obtain information on the volume and 
value of softwood imports. 

 Please provide details of the volume of domestic softwood production and imported 
softwood used in pulp production. What specific species of softwood are used in pulp 
production? 

Response: 

The GOI does not have any detailed information concerning the volume of domestic 
and imported softwood used in pulp production. The Commission should refer to the 
mandatory respondent’s responses to exporter questionnaire and other information 
provided to the Commission by those companies to seek such clarification. However, 
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based on information the GOI obtained from the one of companies [ …..]However, the 
GOI understand that the quantities of softwood so imported and used is relatively 
small. 

3. The GOI’s classification of pulpwood 

The Commission notes that in Section (C), Program (2), Question (11) of its original RGQ, 
the GOI notes that the relevant export prohibition “does not relate to pulpwood. Pulpwood 
is essentially scrap-wood. It includes logs of any size, with no regard to quality or standard.” 
The Commission understands that ‘scrap-wood’ is wood produced as scrap from other 
forestry activities. 

However, in Section (C), Program (1), Question (2) of the RGQ, the GOI reported that 
logging for the Indonesian paper industry produced 5,224,697 m3 of timber from 
privately-owned land and 41,332,323 m3 from state-owned forests.  

From the information highlighted above and information provided by the cooperating 
exporters, the Commission considers that ‘pulpwood’, as defined in the RGQ, is not the 
sole source of fibre for pulp production. The Commission has drawn this conclusion based 
on the assumption that, given the area under cultivation by the pulp and paper industry and 
the associated financial costs, the pulp industry would not be reliant on ‘scrap-wood’ alone. 

 Please confirm the Commission’s understanding of the GOI’s claim that the 
Indonesian pulp industry only uses ‘pulpwood’, which is essentially scrap-wood from 
other forestry activities. 

Response: 

The raw material for pulp industry is not scrap-wood from other forestry activities. The 
raw material for pulp industry is all from industrial forest (HTI), which usually grows 
eucalyptus and acacia tree with ages ranging from 5-6 years, as set out earlier above.  

 If it is the case that pulp is only produced from scrap-wood, and given that pulp is 
produced from acacia and possibly eucalyptus within Indonesia, what are the acacia 
and eucalyptus logs used for? 

Response: 

See GOI answer above.  

4. Indonesia’s comparative advantage in timber production 

The GOI has previous indicated that it believes the Indonesian forestry sector has a 
significant comparative advantage in the production of timber (for pulp production). 
Subsequent to publication of the SEF, the Commission has sourced a comprehensive study 
from RISI detailing the ‘pulpwood’ growing cost for a number of different countries.  

The report notes that the rotation cycle for Indonesian (acacia) is similar to other acacia 
producers in the Asian region, including Malaysia, the Philippines and Vietnam and is also 
similar to Brazil (eucalyptus). The report also notes that the cost of growing pulpwood is 
significantly higher in Indonesia compared to these same countries. For the purpose of this 
study, growing costs comprised: operational costs (land, site preparation, pest control, 
maintenance and administration); stumpage; and harvesting costs. 

 Does the claimed comparative advantage primarily relate to growing costs, or does 
it also relate to the other costs associated with the production, transport and 
marketing of timber? Please provide details.  
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Response: 

Before answering the above question, we wish to reiterate that we agree with the 
Commission’s assessment of our comparative advantage, that already made by the 
Commission’s in the first SEF. In the SEF it was clearly mentioned that Indonesia 
enjoys a comparative advantage over other countries and a listing was made of the 
reasons why Indonesia had a comparative advantage. 

The Indonesia has a comparative advantage over other countries in the region in the 
production of timber because Indonesia has favourable climate conditions, abundant 
fertile soil as well as sufficient economical labour. Acacia or eucalyptus tree in 
Indonesia has a growth rate of 5-6 years compared to 20-25 years in sub-tropical 
regions. As an example, acacia trees can be harvested in 5-6 years with production of 
150 to 210 m3/Ha (with assumption MAI 30 to 35 m3/Ha/year). Eucalyptus trees can be 
harvested in 5-6 years with production of 150 to 210 m3/Ha.   

Cost of production is relatively low because of the fast growing species and efficient 
transportation costs due to the close proximity between the raw materials and pulp 
production facilities.  Similarly, other production costs in Indonesia would generally 
be lower than similar costs incurred by the Australian industry in timber, wood chip, 
pulp and paper production and, hence, its comparative advantage over Australia. 

The extent of Indonesia’s comparative advantage in timber/wood chip/pulp/paper 
production over countries in the Asia Pacific region would depend upon the 
circumstances prevailing in each such country in relation to the production of those 
countries.  However, the GOI does not consider this to be relevant to this investigation 
as it is concerned with exports of A4 Copy Paper from Indonesia to Australia.  To the 
extent that other countries in the Asia Pacific region have a comparative advantage 
over Australia would require an assessment of conditions prevailing in each such 
country as compared with Australia. 

The GOI notes that the report obtained by the Commission, as referred to above, states 
that the production costs of pulpwood (e.g. costs consisting of “operational costs 
(land, site preparation, pest control, maintenance and administration), stumpage, and 
harvesting costs”, although there are no stumpage fees in Indonesia) in Indonesia 
were higher than in the ‘comparable countries (e.g. Malaysia, Vietnam and the 
Philippines).  This evidences that production costs of pulpwood are not artificially 
lowered or otherwise distorted by policies of the GOI. Either directly or indirectly.  This 
in turn, given the Commission’s analysis as set out in the Statement of Essential Facts 
in its claim that a ‘particular market situation exists in Indonesia in relation to the 
domestic market for A4 Copy Paper, supports the GOI’s submissions that pulp and 
paper production costs have not been distorted, nor A4 Copy Paper prices, by 
government policies.  Consequently, there is no “particular market situation” in the 
Indonesian domestic market for A4 Copy Paper for this reason, as well as for the other 
reasons submitted to the Commission by the GOI and others. 

Finally, the GOI reiterates its request that this RISI report be made available to the GOI 
and a non-confidential version be placed on the public file consistent with Article 6 of 
the WTO Anti-Dumping Agreement.  Failure to do so could amount to a denial of 
natural justice, as the Commission would be aware, and a breach of Article 6 of the 
WTO Anti-Dumping Agreement. 

 Please provide any available information, including reports, analysis and cost 
comparisons that the GOI considers to support its position concerning its 
comparative advantage in timber and pulp production. 

Response: 
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The Commission should refer to the respective companies’ data concerning the 
detailed costs of timber and pulp production since each company has its own cost 
structure. The GOI does not have this information.   

The GOI’s view on Indonesia’s comparative advantage regarding timber, pulp and 
paper production is based on common knowledge of the advantages that Indonesia 
has in relation to timber and pulp production compared with countries in sub-tropical 
regions, such as Australia, and is evidenced by the quantity of pulp exported from 
Indonesia as detailed in the Statement of Essential Facts by the Commission.  See 
also the GOI’s response to the preceding question. 
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SECTION 2: QUESTIONS SPECIFIC TO THE ORIGINAL RGQ 

1. RGQ Section (B), Question (6) 

The RGQ indicated that there were no export quotas for wood chip or pulp, but was silent 
regarding acacia or eucalyptus logs.  

 Please confirm that there are no export quotas applicable to exports of acacia or 
eucalyptus logs and provide any supporting evidence. 

Response: 

There are no export quotas applicable to exports of acacia or eucalyptus logs from 
Indonesia. Concerning the export ban please refer to the GOI’s answer to the 
Commission’s questions below.  

2. RGQ Section (B), Question (15)  

The RGQ indicated that there are a number of regulations concerning the Indonesian forest 
and wood product industries.  

  Please provide a complete list of regulations. 

Response: 

Indonesia has various regulations concerning forest and wood product industries 
whether in the form of laws, government regulations, presidential decrees, ministerial 
decrees, and other forms of regulations. There are also various ministries related to 
the forest and wood product industries such as the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of 
Forestry, Ministry of Industry and Ministry of Trade. Each of the Ministry issues 
regulations concerning forest and wood product industries depending on the 
authority given to each Ministry.  

Regulations issued by each ministry can be accessed online. For example: 

Laws, Government Regulations, Presidential Decrees http://indonesia.go.id  

Ministry of Finance http://www.kemenkeu.go.id  

Ministry of Environment and Forestry http://www.menlhk.go.id  

Ministry of Industry http://www.kemenperin.go.id  

Ministry of Trade http://www.kemendag.go.id  

Thus, the Government of Indonesia is unable to provide the Commission with a 
complete list of regulations concerning the Indonesian forest and wood product 
industries given the open-ended nature of this question.  It is unclear to the GOI what 
the scope of government regulations that the Commission is actually seeking as a 
wide range of regulations affect all industries, including the timber/pulp /paper 
industries. This would be the case in other countries, including Australia. 

If the Commission would provide more specific question or identify its particular 
concerns and the nature of the regulations it is seeking that is more precise than 
“regulations concerning the Indonesian forest and wood product industries”, then the 
GOI would then be able to provide a more comprehensive and detailed answer.  

http://indonesia.go.id/
http://www.kemenkeu.go.id/
http://www.menlhk.go.id/
http://www.kemenperin.go.id/
http://www.kemendag.go.id/
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  Please provide any regulations, with corresponding explanations, which 
demonstrate that acacia or eucalyptus logs are not subject to the ban.  

Response: 

The export log ban is regulated under the Ministry of Trade Decree No 44/M-
DAG/PER/7/2012 concerning Export Prohibition on Certain Goods. As stipulated in 
Article 2 of the Decree the Minister of Trade determines certain goods as goods 
restricted from exports for the following reasons: 

 threatening national security or public interests including social, cultural and 
moral interests of the society; 

 protecting Intellectual Property Rights; 

 protecting human life or health; 

 protecting the environment and ecosystem; and/or 

 complying with the international treaty or agreements signed and ratified by 
the Government of Indonesia 

Under Attachment II of the Decree, forestry products which are restricted for exports 
are listed. The list includes HS codes and description of goods. Logs (wood) are 
classified under HS 4403.10.10.00 – 4403.99.90.00, the descriptions of which, 
according to Indonesia Tariffs Classification, are as follows: 

 

44.03 Wood in the rough, whether or not stripped of bark or 
sapwood, or roughly squared. 

4403.10 - Treated with paint, stains, creosote or other 
preservatives: 

4403.10.10.00 - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.10.90.00 - - Other 

4403.20 - Other, coniferous: 

4403.20.10.00 - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.20.90.00 - - Other 

  - Other, of tropical wood specified in Subheading Note 2 to 
this Chapter: 

4403.41 - - Dark Red Meranti, Light Red Meranti and Meranti 
Bakau: 

4403.41.10.00 - - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.41.90.00 - - - Other 

4403.49 - - Other: 

4403.49.10.00 - - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.49.90.00 - - - Other 

  - Other: 

4403.91 - - Of oak (Quercus spp.): 

4403.91.10.00 - - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.91.90.00 - - - Other 

4403.92 - - Of beech (Fagus spp.): 

4403.92.10.00 - - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.92.90.00 - - - Other 

4403.99 - - Other: 

4403.99.10.00 - - - Baulks, sawlogs and veneer logs 

4403.99.90.00 - - - Other 
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However, the Decree provides a more detailed description of goods as compared to 
what is stated in Indonesia Tariff Classification above as can be seen below: 

 

No Tariffs Code/ HS Description of Goods 

1 4403.10.10.00 up to 
4403.99.90.00 

Wood in the rough, whether or not stripped of bark or 
sapwood, or roughly squared (big round wood) 

 

Big round wood is defined in Indonesia’s National Standard 7533.1:20101 as round 
wood that has a diameter of more than 30 cm. Acacia or eucalyptus trees used in the 
pulp and paper industry have a diameter of less than 30 cm. Based on the description 
of goods in Attachment II of the Decree and as previously submitted, acacia and 
eucalyptus wood used in the pulp and paper industry are not the subject to any export 
ban or other restrictions.  

Again, the GOI would like to reiterate that the main raw material of paper industry, 
which is chipwood, woodchip or pulpwood, is not subject to the export ban. 

3. RGQ Section (C), Program (1), Question (2) 

The RGQ indicates that total production of timber used by the paper industry in 2015 was 
5,224,697 m3 (privately owned land) and 41,332,323 m3 (state owned forest) (also see 
Exhibit (8)). 

The response also notes that because these operations occur on private land, over which 
the GOI does not have any control, the GOI does not have information on the value of 
timber harvested by such operations broken down by company and species during the POI.  

 Does the GOI have this information for state owned forests or at an aggregate level 
i.e. total volume and value of timber grown for the purpose of pulp production or on 
a species basis? If so, please provide for the investigation period. 

Response: 

The GOI grants 6.2 million Ha of land concession (IUIPHHK-HTI) (i.e. effectively leases 
of land as has previously been submitted to the Commission) for use by plantation 
owners to establish, at their cost and expense, timber plantations for the cultivation 
of timber for a variety of uses including the cultivation of acacia and eucalyptus timber 
that is ultimately used in paper production.  

However, during the period of 2010-2016 only 2.6 million Ha of land (41.95%) has been 
used to cultivate acacia and eucalyptus timber for the purpose of providing raw 
material for the pulp and paper industry. This is because, by law, the land concession 
holder (e.g. plantation operators) can only use up to 70% of the total area for economic 
purposes. The remaining 30% is required to be used as a conservation area (10%) and 
as a community empowerment area (20%, again at the cost and expense of the 
plantation operator).  

In 2015, the volume of harvested acacia and eucalyptus timber within industrial forest 
(state owned forest leased to plantation owners) for the pulp industry was 29,241,932  

                                            
1 See Appendix I. 
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m3. This area was calculated using amounts paid by plantation owners to the 
government for use of the land (e.g. PSDH, DR, PNT) in 2015. 

 Is the GOI able to source this information or similar information from taxation or 
royalty collection data? More specifically, is GOI able to source timber production 
volumes through information collected to calculate royalty obligations for individual 
companies? If so, please provide for the investigation period. 

Response: 

Yes. In 2015, the amount received from RAPP alone (with its long term suppliers) was 
USD [     ] (PSDH, DR, and PNT) for [     ] m3 of harvested timbers.   The Commission 
should be able to identify and confirm amounts paid by the mandatory respondents 
to the GOI for land use in the cultivation of acacia and eucalyptus timber for pulp/paper 
production from accounts and tax returns submitted to the Commission in response 
to the exporter questionnaire and verified by the Commission. 

 Is this information available through planning and reporting requirements as detailed 
in Section (C), Program (1), Question (3)? If so, please provide for the investigation 
period. 

Response: 

Indeed the planning and reporting requirements are provided in the Government 
Regulation No 6 of 2007 junto Government Regulation No 3 of 2008. 

In the investigating period, RAPP (with its long term suppliers) paid USD [   ] (PSDH, 
DR, and PNT) for [    ] m3 of harvested timbers. 

4. RGQ Section (C), Program (2) 

The RGQ notes that the export of woodchips, chip wood and pulpwood is regulated under 
different regulations than those that apply to the export of logs. 

The response also noted that based on MOT 81/2013, woodchips, chip wood and pulpwood 
are allowed to be exported as long as the exporter has been registered at the Ministry of 
Trade as a Registered Exporter of Forestry Industrial Products (ETPIK).  

 Please confirm the correct export tariff classifications for acacia and eucalyptus logs, 
which have not been converted to woodchips, chip wood or pulpwood. Would they 
be classified within Indonesian Tariff Codes: 4403.10.10.00 to 4403.99.90.00? 

Response: 

Acacia and eucalyptus logs, which have not been converted into woodchips, chip 
wood or pulpwood, are classified to Indonesian Tariff Code headings as follows: 
Headings 4403.10.10.00 to 4403.99.90.00.  However, please also refer to Indonesia’s 
answer to question No 2 above concerning big round wood. 

 Assuming that exports of acacia and eucalyptus do fall under the above tariff 
classification and given information contained with Exhibit (3), would exports of 
acacia and eucalyptus logs be classified under 4403.49 or 4403.99? 
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Response: 

Please also refer to Indonesia’s answer to question No 2 above concerning big round 
wood. 

 Does the GOI have any information concerning the aggregate level i.e. total volume 
and value of acacia or eucalyptus log exports? If so, please provide for the 
investigation period. 

Response: 

In 2015 there were no exports of acacia or eucalyptus logs from Indonesia during the 
investigation period.   

5. RGQ Exhibit (13) 

Memorandum No. 255/DAGLU.2.4/ND/05/2016 provided at Exhibit (13) to the RGQ 
notes that certain goods “can be exported pursuant to the provision set out in Minister 
of Trade Regulation Number 89/M-DAG/PER/10/2015 concerning Export Provision 
Export on Forestry Industry Product”. The Commission does not appear to have 
received a copy of this regulation. 

 Please provide a copy of Minister of Trade Regulation No. 89/M-DAG/PER/10/2015. 

Response: 

Please refer to Appendix II. 
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DECLARATION 

 
The undersigned certifies that all information supplied herein in response to the 
questionnaire (including any data supplied in an electronic format) is complete and correct 
to the best of his/her knowledge and belief. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________    __________________________ 
Date Signature of authorised official 
 
       _______________________ 
       Name of authorised official 
 

       ______________________  
        Title of authorised official 
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LIST OF APPENDIX: 

1. Appendix I (Indonesia’s National Standard 7533.1:2010) 

2. Appendix II (Minister of Trade Regulation Number 89/M-DAG/PER/10/2015 

concerning Export Provision Export on Forestry Industry Product). 

 


